HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES INC /LA Form 10-Q August 09, 2018

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2018 OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to Commission file number 001-32108

Hornbeck Offshore Services, Inc. (Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware 72-1375844
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
103 NORTHPARK BOULEVARD, SUITE 300
COVINGTON, LA 70433
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)
(985) 727-2000
(Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company," and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer

Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company

Emerging growth company

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes No

The total number of shares of common stock, par value \$.01 per share, outstanding as of July 31, 2018 was 37,595,348.

Table of Contents

HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES FORM 10-Q FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>PART 1—FINANCIAL INFORMATIO</u> N	<u>1</u>
Item 1—Financial Statements	<u>1</u>
Item 2—Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation	n <u>Ձ0</u>
Item 3—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	<u>37</u>
Item 4—Controls and Procedures	<u>37</u>
PART II—OTHER INFORMATION	<u>38</u>
Item 1—Legal Proceedings	<u>38</u>
Item 1A—Risk Factors	38
Item 2—Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	<u>38</u>
Item 3—Defaults Upon Senior Securities	<u>38</u>
Item 4—Mine Safety Disclosures	<u>38</u>
Item 5—Other Information	<u> 39</u>
Item 6—Exhibits	41
<u>SIGNATURE</u>	<u>45</u>

Table of Contents

PART 1—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1—Financial Statements

HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share data)

	June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)	December 31, 2017
ASSETS	(
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$109,065	\$ 186,849
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$6,103 and \$6,054,	57,073	44,702
respectively	37,073	44,702
Other current assets	16,006	16,890
Total current assets	182,144	248,441
Property, plant and equipment, net	2,482,733	2,501,013
Deferred charges, net	17,846	12,812
Other assets	6,436	6,612
Total assets	\$2,689,159	\$ 2,768,878
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY		
Current liabilities:		
Accounts payable	\$19,615	\$ 16,196
Accrued interest	15,790	14,734
Accrued payroll and benefits	12,364	9,475
Other accrued liabilities	13,018	8,457
Total current liabilities	60,787	48,862
Long-term debt, including deferred gain of \$17,457 and \$18,911, and net of original issue		
discount of \$5,822 and \$7,862 and deferred financing costs of \$8,452 and \$10,134,	1,083,094	1,080,826
respectively		
Deferred tax liabilities, net	179,124	197,465
Other liabilities	2,522	3,801
Total liabilities	1,325,527	1,330,954
Stockholders' equity:		
Preferred stock: \$0.01 par value; 5,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and		
outstanding	_	_
Common stock: \$0.01 par value; 100,000 shares authorized; 37,595 and 37,144 shares	376	371
issued and outstanding, respectively		
Additional paid-in-capital	760,939	760,278
Retained earnings	604,855	668,598
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)		8,677
Total stockholders' equity	1,363,632	1,437,924
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$2,689,159	\$ 2,768,878

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.

Table of Contents

HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

(an anousanes, energy per smart cana)	Three Months Ended		Six Months Ended		
	June 30,		June 30,		
	2018	2017	2018	2017	
	(Unaudited	d)	(Unaudited)		
Revenues:					
Vessel revenues	\$49,481	\$29,339	\$82,615	\$65,188	
Non-vessel revenues	8,950	8,087	17,403	16,317	
	58,431	37,426	100,018	81,505	
Costs and expenses:					
Operating expenses	34,858	31,368	70,827	59,303	
Depreciation	24,630	24,679	49,278	49,356	
Amortization	2,256	3,266	4,248	6,990	
General and administrative expenses	12,246	9,432	25,121	23,674	
_	73,990	68,745	149,474	139,323	
Gain (loss) on sale of assets	(13)	1	30	19	
Operating loss	(15,572)	(31,318)	(49,426)	(57,799)	
Other income (expense):					
Gain on early extinguishment of debt	_	15,478	_	15,478	
Interest income	519	464	1,163	865	
Interest expense	(16,401)	(13,429)	(30,346)	(27,238)	
Other income (expense), net	(72)	54	(63)	(269)	
	(15,954)	2,567	(29,246)	(11,164)	
Loss before income taxes	(31,526)	(28,751)	(78,672)	(68,963)	
Income tax benefit	(6,438)	(9,262)	(14,929)	(21,576)	
Net loss	\$(25,088)	\$(19,489)	\$(63,743)	\$(47,387)	
Loss per share:					
Basic loss per common share	\$(0.67)	\$(0.53)	\$(1.70)	\$(1.29)	
Diluted loss per common share	\$(0.67)	\$(0.53)	\$(1.70)	\$(1.29)	
Weighted average basic shares outstanding	37,496	36,769	37,419	36,683	
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding	37,496	36,769	37,419	36,683	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.

Table of Contents

HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (In thousands)

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30,

June 30,

2018 2017 2018 2017 (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Net loss \$(25,088) \$(19,489) \$(63,743) \$(47,387)

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation loss (10,916) (2,976) (11,215) (1,207) Total comprehensive loss \$(36,004) \$(22,465) \$(74,958) \$(48,594)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.

Table of Contents

HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (In thousands)

	Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 2017 (Unaudited)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	
Net loss	\$(63,743) \$(47,387)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:	
Depreciation	49,278 49,356
Amortization	4,248 6,990
Stock-based compensation expense	4,753 3,014
Gain on early extinguishment of debt	— (15,478)
Provision for bad debts	49 4,032
Deferred tax benefit	(15,360) (24,243)
Amortization of deferred financing costs	2,217 6,137
Gain on sale of assets	(30) (19)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:	
Accounts receivable	(19,639) (6,199)
Other current and long-term assets	1,038 (3,127)
Deferred drydocking charges	(3,351) (5,955)
Accounts payable	9,427 9,124
Accrued liabilities and other liabilities	2,405 631
Accrued interest	1,055 (1,002)
Net cash used in operating activities	(27,653) (24,126)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:	
Costs incurred for acquisition of offshore supply vessels	(40,868) —
Costs incurred for OSV newbuild program	(2,757) (7,063)
Net proceeds from sale of assets	57 33
Vessel capital expenditures	(5,482) (485)
Non-vessel capital expenditures	(81) (548)
Net cash used in investing activities	(49,131) (8,063)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Proceeds from Credit Facility	— 980
Repurchase of senior notes due 2020	— (5,057)
Repurchase of convertible notes	— (49,631)
Deferred financing costs	— (5,636)
Shares withheld for payment of employee withholding taxes	(536) (573)
Net cash proceeds from other shares issued	260 258
Net cash used in financing activities	(276) (59,659)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash	(724) (396)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(77,784) (92,244)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	186,849 217,027
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$109,065 \$124,783
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW ACTIVITIES:	•
Cash paid for interest	\$29,304 \$26,199
Cash paid for income taxes	\$650 \$710
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:	

Exchange of convertible notes for first-lien term loan

\$— \$127,096

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.

<u>Table of Contents</u> HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements do not include certain information and footnote disclosures required by United States generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. The interim financial statements and notes are presented as permitted by instructions to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the interim financial statements have been included and consist only of normal recurring items. The unaudited quarterly financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes thereto included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hornbeck Offshore Services, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the "Company") for the year ended December 31, 2017. The results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2018.

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2017 has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements at that date, but does not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements.

2. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Standards that have b	Description Description	Required Date of Adoption	Effect on the financial statements and other significant matters
ASU No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" (Topic 606)	This standard requires entities to recognize revenues in a way that depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 requires retrospective application.		This ASU replaces most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The Company adopted ASU 2014-09 on January 1, 2018 under the modified retrospective method. Based on the Company's review of its open revenue-related contracts on the date of adoption, it was determined that there was no cumulative effect of applying the new standard and therefore no adjustment to the opening retained earnings balance was needed as of January 1, 2018. See Note 3 - Revenues from Contracts with Customers for additional information.
ASU No. 2017-01, "Business Combinations" (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business	This standard provides guidance to assist entities with evaluating when a set of transferred assets and activities is a business. ASU 2017-01 requires prospective application.	January 1, 2018	The Company adopted ASU No. 2017-01 on January 1, 2018 under the prospective application. This adoption had no impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Standards that have not been adopted

ASU No. 2016-13. "Financial Instruments -Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments"

This standard requires measurement and recognition of expected credit losses for financial assets held. ASU No. January 2016-13 requires modified retrospective application. Early adoption is permitted.

1,2020

The Company believes that the implementation of this new guidance will not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

ASU No. 2016-02. "Leases" (Topic 842) This standard requires lessees to recognize a lease liability and a right-of-use asset for all leases (with the exception of short-term leases) at the commencement date. ASU 2016-02 requires a modified retrospective application. Early adoption is permitted.

January 1, 2019 The Company continues to evaluate the impact this new guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements. See further discussion below.

ASU No. 2018-02, "Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income"

This standard allows companies to reclassify items in accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting form The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.

January 1, 2019 The Company continues to evaluate the impact this new guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements.

ASU No. 2018-11, "Leases" (Topic 842): **Targeted Improvements** This standard provides for the election of transition methods between the modified retrospective method and the optional transition relief method. The modified retrospective method is applied to all prior reporting periods presented with a cumulative-effect adjustment recorded in the earliest comparative period while the optional transition relief method is applied beginning in the period of adoption with a cumulative-effect adjustment recorded in such period. Also, this standard allows lessors to elect to not separate non-lease components from the associated lease components if certain criteria are met.

January 1, 2019 The Company continues to evaluate the impact this new guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements. See further discussion below.

ASC 842, Leases

Lessor Accounting

In July 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued ASU 2018-11 that allows for 1) a transition option that will allow companies to not apply the new lease standard in the comparative periods presented in their financial statements in the year of adoption and will allow the Company to continue to apply legacy guidance, ASC 840 Leases, including its disclosure requirements, for comparative periods presented, and 2) an option for lessors to combine lease and non-lease components contained within the same agreement when certain criteria are met. The Company does not expect a change in the timing or amounts of revenues recognized upon the adoption of this standard.

Lessee Accounting

The primary difference between current accounting standards and ASC 842 is the recognition of right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under current accounting

standards. The estimated impact of the adoption of this ASC based on the lease arrangements for

which the Company is the lessee as of June 30, 2018, will be an increase to assets and liabilities on the Company's financial statements to reflect the right-of-use assets and lease obligations in a range from \$27.0 million to \$30.0 million. The adoption of the new standard is not expected to result in a change in the amount of lease expense currently being recognized.

3. Revenues from Contracts with Customers

Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers using the modified retrospective method. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations. Accordingly, the Company did not make an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in order to account for the implementation of the new requirements of this standard, and it did not restate prior period information for the effects of the new standard.

The services that are provided by the Company represent a single performance obligation under our contracts that are satisfied at a point in time or over time. Revenues are earned primarily by (1) chartering the Company's vessels, including operation of such vessels, (2) providing vessel management services to third party vessel owners, and (3) providing shore-based port facility services, including rental of land. These revenue streams are provided to customers based upon contracts that include fixed or determinable prices and do not generally include right of return or other significant post-delivery obligations. The Company's vessel revenues, vessel management revenues and port facility revenues are recognized either at a point in time or over the passage of time when the customer has received or is receiving the benefit from the applicable service. Revenues are recognized when the performance obligations are satisfied in accordance with contractual terms and in an amount that reflects the consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for the services rendered or rentals provided. Revenues are recognized net of any taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to governmental authorities. Invoices are typically billed to our customers on a monthly basis and payment terms on customer invoices typically range 30 to 60 days.

A performance obligation under contracts with the Company's customers to render services is the unit of account under Topic 606. The Company accounts for services rendered separately if they are distinct and the service is separately identifiable from other items provided to a customer and if a customer can benefit from the services rendered provided on its own or with other resources that are readily available to the customer. A contract's transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied.

As of June 30, 2018, the Company has certain remaining performance obligations representing contracted vessel revenues for which work has not been performed and such contracts have an original expected duration of more than one year. As of June 30, 2018, the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations for such contracts was \$16.4 million, of which \$15.8 million and \$0.6 million are expected to be recognized in 2018 and 2019, respectively. The Company has elected to apply the optional exemption for the disclosure of the remaining performance obligations for any of its revenue streams that are expected to have a duration of one year or less and, therefore, such amounts have not been disclosed.

Table of Contents

HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disaggregation of Revenues

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Company recognized revenues as follows (in thousands):

	Three M	onths	Six Months Ended		
	Ended Ju	ine 30,	June 30,		
	2018	2017	2018	2017	
Vessel revenues	\$49,481	\$29,339	\$82,615	\$65,188	
Vessel management revenues	7,974	7,320	15,733	14,773	
Shore-based facility revenues	976	767	1,670	1,544	
	\$58,431	\$37,426	\$100.018	\$81.505	

4. Loss Per Share

Basic loss per common share was calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per common share was calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year plus the effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock unit awards. When reporting a net loss, the Company uses weighted average basic shares outstanding to calculate diluted earnings per share. Weighted average number of common shares outstanding was calculated by using the sum of the shares determined on a daily basis divided by the number of days in the period. The table below reconciles the Company's loss per share (in thousands, except for per share data):

	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Months Ended June 30,	
	2018	2017	2018	2017
Net loss	\$(25,088)	\$(19,489)	\$(63,743)	\$(47,387)
Weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding	37,496	36,769	37,419	36,683
Add: Net effect of dilutive stock options and unvested restricted stock $(1)(2)(3)$	_	_	_	_
Weighted average number of dilutive shares of common stock outstanding	37,496	36,769	37,419	36,683
Loss per common share:				
Basic loss per common share	\$(0.67)	\$(0.53)	\$(1.70)	\$(1.29)
Diluted loss per common share	\$(0.67)	\$(0.53)	\$(1.70)	\$(1.29)

Due to a net loss, the Company excluded from the calculation of loss per share the effect of equity awards

- (1) representing the rights to acquire 529 and 639 shares of common stock for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 982 and 988 shares of common stock for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the 2019 convertible senior notes were not dilutive, as the
- (2) average price of the Company's stock was less than the effective conversion price of such notes. It is the Company's stated intention to redeem the principal amount of its 2019 convertible senior notes in cash and the Company has used the treasury method for determining potential dilution in the diluted earnings per share computation.

 Dilutive unvested restricted stock units are expected to fluctuate from quarter to quarter depending on the
- (3) Company's performance compared to a predetermined set of performance criteria. See Note 7 to these financial statements for further information regarding certain of the Company's restricted stock grants.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Asset Impairment Assessment

In accordance with ASC 360, the Company periodically reviews long-lived asset valuations when events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset's carrying value may not be recoverable. If indicators of impairment exist, the Company assesses the recoverability of its long-lived assets by comparing the projected future undiscounted cash flows associated with the related long-lived asset group over their remaining estimated useful lives. If the sum of the estimated undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amounts of the asset group, the assets are written down to their estimated fair values based on the expected discounted

<u>Table of Contents</u> HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

future cash flows or appraised values attributable to the assets. The future cash flows are subjective and are based on the Company's current assumptions regarding future dayrates, utilization, operating expense, G&A expense and recertification costs that could differ from actual results.

During the second quarter of 2016, the Company determined that it observed indicators of impairment related to its vessels. This resulted from the rapid deterioration of its second quarter 2016 operating results, as well as the uncertainty regarding future market conditions and the related impact on the Company's projected operating results. For the purposes of calculating the undiscounted cash flows, the Company grouped its vessels into two groups, OSVs and MPSVs, and used a probability-weighted undiscounted cash flow projection to test for recoverability. After reviewing the results of this calculation, the Company determined that each of its asset groups had sufficient projected undiscounted cash flows to recover the remaining book value of the Company's long-lived assets within such groups. While the Company has not observed any new impairment indicators since the second quarter of 2016, the Company has reviewed and updated, as necessary, the assumptions used in determining its undiscounted cash flow projections for each asset group to reflect current market conditions. After reviewing the results of these updated projections, the Company determined that each of its asset groups continue to have sufficient projected undiscounted cash flows to recover the remaining book value of the Company's long-lived assets within such group.

6. Long-Term Debt

As of the dates indicated, the Company had the following outstanding long-term debt (in thousands):

	June 30,	December 31,
	2018	2017
5.875% senior notes due 2020, net of deferred financing costs of \$1,611 and \$2,061	\$365,331	\$ 364,881
5.000% senior notes due 2021, net of deferred financing costs of \$2,657 and \$3,142	447,343	446,858
1.500% convertible senior notes due 2019, net of original issue discount of \$4,707 and	93,885	91,527
\$6,634 and deferred financing costs of \$1,055 and \$1,486	93,003	91,327
First-lien credit facility due 2023, including deferred gain of \$17,457 and \$18,911, and net		
of original issue discount of \$1,115 and \$1,228, and deferred financing costs of \$3,129 and	176,535	177,560
\$3,445		

\$1,083,094 \$1,080,826

The table below summarizes the Company's cash interest payments (in thousands):

y		(t
	Cash	
	Interest	Payment Dates
	Payments	
5.875% senior notes due 2020	\$ 10,779	April 1 and October 1
5.000% senior notes due 2021	11,250	March 1 and September 1
1.500% convertible senior notes due 2019	747	March 1 and September 1
First-lien credit facility due 2023 (1)	1,202	Variable

The interest rate on the Credit Facility is variable based on the Company's election. The amount reflected in this (1)table is the monthly amount payable based on the 30-day LIBOR interest rate that was elected and in effect on June 30, 2018. Please see further discussion of the variable interest rate below.

First-Lien Credit Facility

The Company's \$300 million first-lien credit facility, or Credit Facility, matures in June 2023 and currently provides for \$136.7 million of additional available liquidity, \$68.0 million of which is required to be drawn by December 31,

2018 with the remaining balance required to be drawn by September 1, 2019. The Company can use draws under the facility for working capital and general corporate purposes, including the acquisition of distressed assets and/or the refinancing of existing debt, subject to, among other things, compliance with certain covenants requiring the Company to maintain access to liquidity (cash and credit availability) of \$25.0 million at all times. The minimum liquidity level required for prepayment of the Company's existing

<u>Table of Contents</u>

HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

indebtedness and/or certain other restricted payments is \$65.0 million. The Credit Facility is collateralized by 55 domestic high-spec OSVs and MPSVs, including a security interest in two pending MPSV newbuilds, and associated personalty, as well as by certain deposit and securities accounts. Borrowings accrue interest, at the Company's option, at either an adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate (subject to a 1.00% floor) plus an applicable margin or the greatest of (a) the prime rate announced by The Wall Street Journal, (b) the Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect on such day plus 1/2 of 1%, and (c) the London Interbank Offered Rate plus, 1%, plus, an applicable a margin. On March 27, 2018, the Company entered into an amendment with its first-lien lenders to clarify various provisions in and made certain technical revisions to the Credit Facility, primarily dealing with the administerial permissabilities regarding vessel reflagging transactions and permitted acquisition indebtedness, among other matters.

The agreement governing the Credit Facility and the indentures governing the Company's 2020 senior notes and 2021 senior notes impose certain restrictions on the Company. Such restrictions affect, and in many cases limit or prohibit, among other things, the Company's ability to incur additional indebtedness, make capital expenditures, redeem equity, create liens, sell assets and make dividend or other restricted payments.

The Company estimates the fair value of its 2020 senior notes, 2021 senior notes, 2019 convertible senior notes and Credit Facility by primarily using quoted market prices. Given the observability of the inputs to these estimates, the Company has assigned a Level 2 of the three-level valuation hierarchy for such outstanding notes.

As of the dates indicated below, the Company had the following face values, carrying values and fair values (in thousands):

	June 30, 2018			December 31, 2017		
	Food Walua			g Fair Value Face Value		Fair
	Value Value Value		race value	Value	Value	
5.875% senior notes due 2020	\$366,942	\$365,331	\$274,289	\$366,942	\$364,881	\$244,714
5.000% senior notes due 2021	450,000	447,343	295,313	450,000	446,858	236,250
1.500% convertible senior notes due 2019	99,647	93,885	77,167	99,647	91,527	74,486
First-lien credit facility due 2023 (1)	163,322	176,535	162,718	163,322	177,560	162,505
	\$1,079,911	\$1.083.094	\$809,487	\$1.079.911	\$1,080,826	\$717.955

⁽¹⁾ The carrying value of the Credit Facility due 2023 includes a deferred gain of \$17,457 less original issue discount and deferred financing costs of \$4,244.

Capitalized Interest

During the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company did not capitalize any of its interest costs. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company capitalized approximately \$2.3 million of interest costs related to the construction of vessels. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, the Company capitalized approximately \$2.5 million and \$4.9 million, respectively, of interest costs related to the construction of vessels.

7. Incentive Compensation

Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plan

The Company's stock-based incentive compensation plan covers a maximum of 4.95 million shares of common stock that allows the Company to grant restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, or collectively restricted stock, stock options, stock appreciation rights and fully-vested common stock to

<u>Table of Contents</u> HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

employees and directors. As of June 30, 2018, the Company has granted awards covering 4.68 million shares of common stock under such plan.

During the six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company granted 1,527,102 time-based and 939,391 performance-based phantom restricted stock units. The phantom shares to be received under the performance-based phantom restricted stock units are calculated based on the Company's performance compared to two pre-determined criteria, as defined by the phantom restricted stock unit agreements governing such awards. The actual number of shares that could be received by the award recipients can range from 0% to 150% of the awards granted depending on the Company's performance.

The fair value of the Company's performance-based phantom restricted stock units, which is the stock price on the date of grant, is applied to the total shares that are expected to fully vest and is amortized over the vesting period, which is generally three years, based on the Company's internal performance measured against the pre-determined criteria, as applicable. The compensation expense related to time-based phantom restricted stock units are amortized over a vesting period of up to three years, as applicable, and is determined based on the market price of the Company's stock on the date of grant applied to the total shares that are expected to fully vest. All phantom restricted stock units are re-measured quarterly and classified as a liability, due to the settlement of these awards in cash. In addition to the phantom restricted stock units granted in 2018, the Company granted performance-based and time-based restricted stock units and phantom restricted stock units in prior years. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company issued 426,896 shares of common stock due to vestings of restricted stock units and employee purchases under the Company's Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

The impact of stock-based compensation expense charges on the Company's operating results are reflected in the table below (in thousands, except for per share data):

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
\$1,885 \$972 \$4,753 \$3,014
\$1,500 \$659 \$3,850 \$2,071

Earnings per common share:

Loss before income taxes

Net loss

Basic earnings per common share \$0.04 \$0.02 \$0.10 \$0.06 Diluted earnings per common share \$0.04 \$0.02 \$0.10 \$0.06

8. Commitments and Contingencies

Vessel Construction

During the first quarter of 2018, the Company notified the shipyard that it was terminating the construction contracts for the final two vessels in the Company's fifth OSV newbuild program due to performance issues at the shipyard. The Company is working with the issuer of the shipyard's performance bonds in order to complete the construction of the vessels at a completion yard. The cost of this nearly completed 24-vessel newbuild program, before construction period interest, is expected to be approximately \$1,335.0 million, of which \$17.0 million, and \$44.8 million are currently expected to be incurred in the remainder of 2018 and fiscal 2019, respectively. However, the timing of these remaining construction draws remains subject to change commensurate with any potential further delays in the delivery dates of the final two newbuild vessels. From the inception of this program through June 30, 2018, the Company had incurred \$1,273.2 million, or 95.4%, of total expected project costs.

Table of Contents

HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Vessel Acquisitions

On May 18, 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of four high-spec Jones Act-qualified OSVs and related equipment from Aries Marine Corporation and certain of its affiliates for \$40.9 million in cash, inclusive of \$4.0 million related to a non-compete intangible asset that will be amortized over the life of such asset, or two years. Also included in this transaction was the cost of fuel and lube inventory and transactions fees. The acquired vessels are all U.S.-flagged and are comprised of two 300 class OSVs and two 280 class OSVs. The Company determined that substantially all of the fair value of the assets acquired are concentrated in a group of similar identifiable assets and, therefore, has accounted for such transaction as an asset acquisition under ASU 2017-01. Contingencies

In the normal course of its business, the Company becomes involved in various claims and legal proceedings in which monetary damages are sought. It is management's opinion that the Company's liability, if any, under such claims or proceedings would not materially affect the Company's financial position or results of operations. The Company insures against losses relating to its vessels, pollution and third party liabilities, including claims by employees under Section 33 of the Merchant Marine Act of 1920, or the Jones Act. Third party liabilities and pollution claims that relate to vessel operations are covered by the Company's entry in a mutual protection and indemnity association, or P&I Club, as well as by marine liability policies in excess of the P&I Club's coverage. The Company provides reserves for any individual claim deductibles for which the Company remains responsible by using an estimation process that considers Company-specific and industry data, as well as management's experience, assumptions and consultation with outside counsel. As additional information becomes available, the Company will assess the potential liability related to its pending claims and revise its estimates. Although historically revisions to such estimates have not been material, changes in estimates of the potential liability could materially impact the Company's results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

9. Other Accrued Liabilities

Other accrued liabilities include the following (in thousands):

June 30, December 31,

2018 2017

Accrued lease expense \$5,278 \$ 5,142

Deferred revenues 2,122 460 Other 5,618 2,855 Total \$13,018 \$ 8,457

10. Income Taxes

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, or the Act, was signed into law on December 22, 2017. The primary impact of this legislation was a reduction of the U.S. federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% generally effective January 1, 2018. As of December 31, 2017, the Company included in its income tax benefit rate a preliminary estimate related to executive compensation, alternative minimum tax refundable credits, taxation in its foreign jurisdictions, and re-measurement of its deferred taxes. As of June 30, 2018, the Company has not identified or recorded any revisions to its provisional amounts and has not completed its accounting for the tax effects of enactment of the Act; however, in certain cases, as described below, the Company made reasonable estimates of the effects and recorded provisional amounts. The Company's provisional estimates on Global Intangible Low Taxed Income, Foreign Derived Intangible Income, Base Erosion and Anti-Abuse, and the IRC Section 163(j) interest limitation did not materially impact its effective tax benefit rate for the three months ended June

<u>Table of Contents</u> HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30, 2018. The Company will continue to refine its calculations as additional tax guidance becomes available and its internal analysis is completed. The accounting for the tax effects of the Act will be completed in 2018 as allowed under Staff Accounting Bulletin 118, which was issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 22, 2017.

The effective tax benefit rate for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was 19.0% and 31.3%, respectively. The lower benefit rate for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 was primarily due to the reduction of the statutory corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21% resulting from the Act. In addition, the Company established valuation allowances in 2017 for foreign tax credit carryforwards based upon management's conclusion that it is more likely than not such losses and credits will not be realized by their expiration dates.

11. Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements of Guarantors

The following tables present the condensed consolidating balance sheets as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the condensed consolidating statements of operations, the condensed consolidating statements of comprehensive income (loss) and condensed consolidating statements of cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, for the domestic subsidiaries of the Company that serve as co-borrower and/or guarantors of the Company's 2019 convertible senior notes, 2020 senior notes, 2021 senior notes and the Credit Facility, as well as the financial results for the Company's subsidiaries that do not serve as guarantors. The co-borrower and/or guarantor subsidiaries of the 2019 convertible senior notes, 2020 senior notes, 2021 senior notes and the Credit Facility are 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by Hornbeck Offshore Services, Inc. The guarantees are full and unconditional and joint and several. The non-guarantor subsidiaries of such notes include all of the Company's foreign subsidiaries.

<u>Table of Contents</u> HORNBECK OFFSHORE SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet (In thousands, except per share data)

(In thousands, except per share data)					
	As of June 30, 2018				
	Parent	Guarantor	Non-Guaranto	or Consolidati	ng Consolidated
	1 archi	Subsidiaries	Subsidiaries	Consondan	ing Consondated
ASSETS					
Current assets:					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$7	\$103,862	\$ 5,196	\$ —	\$ 109,065
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for		51,970	5,188	(85) 57,073
doubtful accounts of \$6,103		31,970	3,100	(65) 51,015
Other current assets	53	14,866	1,087		16,006
Total current assets	60	170,698	11,471	(85) 182,144
Property, plant and equipment, net		2,285,189	197,544		2,482,733
Deferred charges, net		15,967	1,879		17,846
Intercompany receivable	1,782,674	758,505	220,164	(2,761,343) —
Investment in subsidiaries	721,406	8,602		(730,008) —
Other assets		5,890	546		6,436
Total assets	\$2,504,140	\$3,244,851	\$ 431,604	\$(3,491,436	5) \$2,689,159
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'					
EQUITY					
Current liabilities:					
Accounts payable	\$ —	\$18,657	\$ 958	\$ —	\$ 19,615
Accrued interest	15,790	_	_		15,790
Accrued payroll and benefits	_	11,712	652	_	12,364
Other accrued liabilities	_	12,555	548	(85) 13,018
Total current liabilities	15,790	42,924	2,158	(85) 60,787
Long-term debt, including deferred gain of					
\$17,457, and net of original issue discount of	1,083,094	_	_		1,083,094
\$5,822 and deferred financing costs of \$8,452					
Deferred tax liabilities, net	_	177,433	1,691	_	179,124
Intercompany payables	39,509	2,264,292	466,567	(2,770,368) —
Other liabilities		2,479	43		2,522
Total liabilities	1,138,393	2,487,128	470,459		